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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
SITI MAURYA CABLE NET PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of SITI MAURYA CABLE
NET PRIVATE LIMITED (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except
for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(*Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31st March 2023,
and its loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Company’s ‘Revenue from Operations’ include broadcasters’ share in subscription income from
pay channels, which has correspondingly been presented as an expense which is not in accordance
with the requirements of Ind AS-115, ‘Revenue from contract with customers’. Had the Management
disclosed the same on net basis, the ‘Revenue from Operations’ and the ‘Pay Channel, carriage
sharing and related cost® each would have been lower by Rs 2,11,200 thousands for the year ended
31st March 2023 and the loss would have remained the same as currently reported.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder,
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and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAT’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

1. Key audit matter

Provisioning for Expected Credit Loss ('ECL")

Trade receivables comprise a significant portion of the current financial assets of the Company. As at
March 31, 2023 trade receivables aggregate Rs 46,677 thousands (net of provision for expected credit
losses of Rs 42,920 thousands).

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets.

Since the Company has revenue streams which are dissimilar, the management has identified different
classes of trade receivables basis the customer profile and nature of service provided or item sold. The
management regularly assesses each class of trade receivables for recoverability, Provision for ECL is
created by the management considering the recovery trends noted for the respective class, adjusted for
forward looking estimates. Additional provision is created for the receivables specifically identified as
doubtful or non-recoverable.

Estimation of the rates at which provision for ECL is to be created for each revenue stream, involve
significant degree of judgment and estimate.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We have performed the following procedures for assessment of sufficiency of the provisioning for

BECL:

* Obtained the ageing of trade receivables and discussed the key receivable balances, considering if
any correspondence is available to establish the management’s assessment of recoverability of
such dues.

* Analysis of the methodology used to determine the provision amount for the current year,

* Assessing key ratios which include collection periods and days outstanding.

* Tested subsequent settlement of trade receivables after the balance date on a sample basis.
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2. Key audit matter

Evaluation of uncertain tax positions

The Company has material uncertain tax positions including matters under dispute which involves
significant judgment to determine the possible outcome.
Refer Note No 41 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We obtained details of completed assessment and demands received during the financial year from
management. We also obtained the opinion of legal experts to challenge the management’s underlying
assumptions in estimating the tax provision and the possible outcomes. The legal experts considered
legal precedence and other rulings in evaluating management’s position on these uncertain tax
positions. Additionally we considered the effect of new information in respect of uncertain tax
positions as at April 1, 2022 to evaluate whether any change was required to management’s position
on these uncertainties,

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this audit report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the other information included in the Annual Report if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter of those charged with
governance.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs (financial position), loss (financial performance including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
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provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also;

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
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or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work: and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has not paid any remuneration
to its directors during the year and therefore the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the
Act are not applicable to the Company.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A. a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
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Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

g)

We have sought and except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

Except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, in our
opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

Except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, in our
opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the provisions of section 143(3)(i) for reporting on the adequacy of internal financial controls
over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls of the Company, are not
applicable;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule
I'1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements;

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 3 1st March 2023;

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 3 1st March 2023;

(a) the Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no fund
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;
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(b) the Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(¢) based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  the company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi.  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly,
reporting under rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For Agarwal K & Co. LLP

Gouray
Partner !
Membership Number 064579

UDIN: 230€YS7G RE IV VIA 159/

Place: Kolkata
Date: 24™ day of May 2023




\
\

Agarwal K & Co. LLP

T: +91 33 4001 0567 / 4063 0566 E : office@agarwalkco.in W : www.agarwalkco.in

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of SITI MAURYA CABLE NET PRIVATE LIMITED
of even date)

1.

(a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and equipments and relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The company has a program of physical verification of it's Property, Plant and equipments
other than set top boxes, which are in possession of customers/third parties and distribution
equipment comprising overhead and underground cables and other equipment. Management
is of the view that it is not possible to physically verify these assets due to their nature and
location. Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and equipments were physically
verified by the management during the year. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, other than for physical verification of set top boxes and
distribution and other equipment referred to above, the frequency of verification of property,

plant and equipments is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets.

(¢) The company does not own any immovable properties and hence no title deeds are held in
the name of the company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-
of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as
at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted by the Management at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business.
No material discrepancies were noticed in the physical stock as compared with the book
records,

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ¥ 5 crore, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable,
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According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
investments in, companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, and not granted unsecured
loans to other parties, during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans and
investment made, and guarantees provided by it, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed
deposits as at March 31, 2023 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the maintenance of cost records has been
prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of products and services of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the books of
accounts maintained by the Company in this connection and are of the opinion that, prima
facie, the records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and information and
explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed
statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Service
Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the com pany
examined by us the details of dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty,
Excise Duty, Entertainment Tax, Goods and Service Tax and Value Added Tax which have
not been deposited as on 31st March, 2023 on account of disputes are given below:

Name  of  the | Nature of the | Amount | Period to which | Forum where dispute is
Statute dues (Rs in | the amount | pending

Lakhs) relates
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 443 | A.Y.2014-15 | Commissioner of Income
1961 Tax (Appeals)
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 2,19 | AY.2016-17 | Commissioner of Income
1961 Tax (Appeals)
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 285 | A.Y.2019-20 | Deputy Commissioner of
1961 Income Tax
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Name of the | Nature of the | Amount | Period to which | Forum where dispute is

Statute dues (Rs in | the amount | pending

Lakhs) relates
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 90.85 | A.Y.2020-21 | Deputy Commissioner
1961 Income Tax

of

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding
term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order
is not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on

short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by
the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(2) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.
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(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year (and upto the date of this report), while determining the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it;
the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 & 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard
(AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant
rules.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business,

(b) The company is not required to appoint the internal auditor as per the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
him/her. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
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balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

20 (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other
than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the
Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the
said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the
year.

(b) There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under sub-

section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Agarwal K & Co. LLP

Number: E300016

Membership Number 064579
UDIN: 2306499 Qg v 14 159

Place: Kolkata
Date: 24! day of May 2023



3’2.

Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
CIN: U93000WB2012PTC184542
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

( T thousands)

Particulars Notes Avt Lt
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A. Assels
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 1,60,047 231,349
(b) Capital wark-in-progress 3 9,116 12,147
() Other intangible assets 4 823 3,281
(d) Financinl assets
(1) Other financial assets 5 3,105 3,165
() Deferred tax assets (Net) -] 43,880 31,689
Sub-total of Non-current assets 2,16,971 281,631
2, Current assets
() Inventories 7 488 945
(b} Financinl nssets
{1) Trade receivables 8 46,677 73,014
(i#) Cush and Cash Equivalents 9 16,054 20,389
(111) Bank Balance other than(ii) above 10 32,808 31,305
{iv) Loans 11 - .
(v} Other financial assets 12 9,191 5,585
(e} Current tax assets (Net) 13 22,945 10,670
[d) Other current assets 14 10,645 15310
Sub-total of Current assets 1,38,807 1,57,218
Total assets 3,55,778 4,38,849
B, Equity and linbilities
Equity
() Equity share capital 15 90,280 90,280
(b Other equity 16 1,07.408 145327
Sub-total - Equity 1,207,688 2,35,606
Liabilities
1. Non-curvent liabilities
(n) Provisions 17 37,065 37,059
() Other non-current liabilities 18 555 555
Sub-total « Non-current liabilitics 37,620 37,614
L. Curvent liabilitics
(@) Financial linbilities
(1) Trade payables 19
Total outstanding dues of creditors for micro, small and medium
enterprises ” >
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro, small and medium
enterprises 94,663 1,20,874
(11) Other financial linbilities 20 835 14,942
(b) Other current linbilities 21 24,651 29,518
(c) Provistons 22 321 295
Sub-total of current liabilities 1,.20.,471 1,65.629
Tutal cquity and liabilities 3,55,778 4,385,848
Summary of significant accounting policies 1&2

The secompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statéments

Tz is the balance shest referred 1o in our report of even dute.

For Agarwal K & Co LLP
Chartered Accouty ~.

For and on behnlf of the Board of Directors of
SITL Maurya Cable Net Private Limited

J\\\m\&”w‘

Muno Kumar
Director
DIN: 03449709

< Abhishek Kumar

Manager (F&A)

Place - Kqlkata
Date 2! iy of Muy' 2023

al Rgakash Jihfal
pany S ary



Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
CIN: U93000WB2012PTC184542
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31,2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

( ¥ thousands)
. Year ended Year ended
Pavtieniine Notes | nfareh31,2023 | Mareh 31,2022
Revenue
I Revenue from operations 23 4,08,008 4,36,951
Il Other income 24 9.849 11,656
HI Total revenue (I+11) 4,17,857 4,48,607
IV Expenses
Purchases of traded goods 25 122 294
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories of traded goods 26 457 201
Carriage sharing, pay channel and refated costs 27 3,09,857 3,28.564
Employee benefits expense 28 24,444 26,088
Finance costs 29 16 818
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 30 1,01,265 77,297
Other expenses 3l 21,542 48,647
Total expenses 4,57,703 4,81,910
V  Profit /(Loss )before exceptional items and tax (39,845) (33,303)
Y1 Exceptional Iltems 32 10,670 -
VII Profit/(Loss) before tax (50,515) (33,303)
VIl Tax Expenses (12.19l)r 28
(a) Current Tax = S
(b) Deffered Tax (12,191) 28
IX Profit /(Loss) for the period ended (38,324) (33,330)
X  Other Comprehensive Income 33 406 0
Total Comphrensive Income for the year (37,919) (33,330)
Earning Per Share 34
Basic (4.20) (3.69)
Diluted (4.20) (3.69)
Summary of significant accounting policies 1 &2

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SITI Maurya Cable Net Private Limited

For Agarwal K & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm R& No.: E300016

Membership Number: 064579

UDIN: 2% 8 6 UST D Ra 1V v A IS5/
Place - Kolkata

Date 248y of May' 2023

Supendra Kumar Agarwal

Dchmr

DIN: 00569816

Aorupnle

Abhishek Kumar
Manager (F&A)

[& e

Muno Kumar
Director
DIN: 03449709

Prakash JS{;

Company Secretary




Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

A Equity Share Capital

( ¥ thousands)

Changes in Equity | Restated balance at Changes in equity
Balance at Share Capital due |the beginning of the shike cga ital l;lurin Balance at
Ist April'2022 to prior period current reporting P B 31st March 2023
. the current year
errors period
90,280 - - - 90,280
( T thousands)
Changes in Equity | Restated balance at . .
Balance at Share Capital due |the beginning of the sli};incg:aesi::le(;luu::z Balance at
Ist April'2021 to prior period current reporting P | 31st March 2022
. the current year
errors period
90,280 - - - 90,280

B Other Equity

( ¥ thousands)

Reserves and Surplus

rerGonlens SCEs It Retained Earnings Total Other Equity
Reserve
Balance as at April 01, 2022 70,000 75,327 1,45,327
Profit / (Loss) for the year - (38,324) (38,324)
Other Comprehensive Income - 406 406
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (37,919) (37,919)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 70,000 37,408 1,07.408
Balance as at April 01, 2021 70,000 1,08.657 1,78,657
Profit / (Loss) for the year - (33,330) (33,330)
Other Comprehensive Income - 0 0
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (33,330) (33.330)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 70,000 75,327 1.45,327

This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date

For Agarwal K & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.:

E300016

Membership Number: 064579

UDIN:23 oeysa1o aginvia s
Place - Kolkata

Date -'1‘;’35)! of May' 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SITI Maurya Cable Net Private Limited

v

ndra Kumar Agarwal

Dll‘ ctor
DIN: 00569816

\

Abhishek Kumar
Manager (F&A)

X\\m‘“‘m

Muno Kumar
Director

DIN: 03449709

Company Secretary




Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
CIN: U93000WB2012PTC184542
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31,2023

{ ¥ thousands)
X Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A, Cash Flow from operating activities:
Net Profit before taxation, exceptional item & prior period items (39,845) (33,303)
Adjustment for -
Depreciation 1,01,265 77,297
Loss on sale/disposal/decapitalisation of fixed assets 1,374 -
Provision for retirement benefit 438 742
Unrealised forex (gain )/ loss {135) 52
Interest paid & borrowing cost 16 818
Provision for doubtful debts & advances 1,492 (783)
Excess provisions written back (945) (8,112)
Provision for STH chum's - 28,676
Interest on fixed deposit / Income tax refund/ others 2,208 1,565
Operating profit before working capital changes 65,866 66,952
Change in working capital
Increase/(Decrease) in trade pavables (25.130) (2,121)
Increase/(Decrease) in other non current liabilities - (24,702)
Increase/ Decrease) in other current finacial liabilities (14,107) (285)
Increase/(Decrease) in other current habilities (4,867) (14,785)
Decrease/ ( Increase) in trade receivable 24,845 1,639
Decrease/ ( Increase) in inventories 457 201
Decrease/ ( Increase) in long-term loans and advances given 60 258
Decrease { Increase) in short-term loans and advances given - 262
Decrense! ( Increase) in other current financial assets (3,606) 17,266
Decrense/ { Increase) in other current assets 4,666 10,827
Cash Generation from Operating Activities before exceptional item 48,184 55,530
Exceptional Items (10,670) -
Cash Generation from operating activities after exceptional item 37,514 55,530
Net Prior Period Adjustment - -
Cash Generation from Operating Activities after Prior Period Item 37,514 55,530
Income Tax Paid ( including TDS) 12,275 8,336
Net Cash Generation from operating activities 25,240 47,194
B. Cashflow From Investin tivities:
Purchase of fixed assets/ Capital work in progress (26,120) (29.565)
Sale of fixed assets 272 -
Investment in fixed deposit (1,504) (21,30%)
Interest on fixed deposit / Income tax (2,208) (1,565)
Net Cash Generation / (deployed) in Investing Activities (29.559)h (52,434)
-C w From Finanecin ies:
Interest paid (16) (818)
Short term borrowings taken / (repayment) - (6,202)
Net Cash Generation / (deployed) in Financing Activities (16)) (7,020)
Net Increase/(decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (4,335) (12,261)
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the vear 20,389 32,650
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of the year 16,054 20,389
Cash & Cash Equivalent include (¥ thousands) (¥ thousands)
Cash Balance 1,604 2223
Bank Balance 2,398 908
Cheque in Hand 1,179 6,869
Deposits - Free Maturity within 3 months 10,872 10,389
Cash & Cash Equivalent Reported 16,054 20,389
For Agmrwal K & Co, LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartersd Amomﬂ‘.;rrla--\

ICAI Fir &Q@J«B{é
j--v.: -

SITI Magrya Cable Net Private Limited

00016 - WAY
&/ Q\\‘wm
end; ar Agarwal Muno Kumar

irector Director
IN; 00569816 DIN: 03449709

Partner o~

Membership NOmbar=06457 /Q’VIAM’-
UDIN DX OE G £7 9 8L Inv IA15F) Abhishek Kumar J h Jindal
Place - Kolkata Manager (F&A) any Secre

Date -i.m of May' 2023



Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023

Company Overview
1 SITI Maurya Cable Net Private Limited ("the Company") was incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is
Multi System Operator (MSO) engaged in the distribution of television channels through digital cable distribution network, broadband services
and other related services. The Company is a subsidiary of Indian Cable Network Company Limited which is subsidiary of Siti Network
Limited and hence Siti Network Limited is the utlimate holding company.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of preparation
Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS ) as prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’) read with relevant rules of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 read with companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for following :

a) Financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is measured at Fair value/ Amortised cost;
b) Non-current assets held for sale — measured at the lower of the carrying amounts and fair value less cost to sell;
¢) Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value

Current Vs non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
n asset 1s classifi current itis :
a) Expected 10 be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cy«le;
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
¢) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.
¢) All the other assets are classified as non-current,
A liabilitv is current when ;
a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
¢} Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all ather liabilities as non-current Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as non-current assets and
liabilities respectively.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All financial
information presented in INR has been rounded off to the nearest thousand as per the requirements of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated,

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year, unless otherwise
mentioned, and are explained below-

b) Use of Estimate
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) requires management 1o make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities on the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of Tncome and Expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any
revision 10 accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current or future periods, The most significant techniques for estimation are
described in the accounting policies below. Critical accounting judements and the key sources of estimation or uncertainty in applying the
Company’s accounting policies arise in relation to the following and also in relation to other accounting policies as stated elsewhere,

(i) Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, Plant & Equipment held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
balance sheet at cost/deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,




(ii) Intangible Assets

Software and VC Cards are included in the Balance sheet as an Intangible asset where they are clearly linked to long term economic benefits
for the Company. In this case they are measured initially at purchase cost and then amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives.

(iii) Revenue Recognition

The Marketing and Placement income is recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss on the basis of contract with the Broadcasters. Since this
is a continuous service, therefore in few cases the Income is recognised following the trend of past basis in the absence of agreement pending
renewal

(iv) Claims, Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

The Company has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third parties. Where an outflow of funds is believed to be
probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management’s assessment of specific circumstances of
each dispute and relevant external advice, managemerit provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such accruals are by nature complex and
can take number of years 1o resolve and can involve estimation uncertainty. Information about such litigations is provided in notes to the
financial statements.

(v} Uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 :

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating o COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of
receivables, unbilled revenues and investment in subsidiaries. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the
global economie conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal
and external sources of information including credit reports and related information, economic forecasts. The Company has performed
sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The
impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial
statements.

¢) Property, Plant and Equipment
(i) Recognition and Measurement
Property, Plant and Equipment is recognised at cost\deemed cost less accumulated depreciation or impairmment losses if any, incurred to bring
the asset to the present condition and location. The cost of fixed assets comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any
import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on
making the asset ready for its intended use and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the
asset is ready for its intended use.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials, direct labour and any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the item to its intended working condition and estimated costs of dismantling, removing and restoring the site on which
it is located, wherever applicable:

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property. plant and equipment.

The items of spare parts, stand-by equipments and servicing equipments that satisfy the definition and recognition criteria of Property , Plant
and Equipment is classified under Capital work in progress. Capital Work in progress comprises of the cost of fixed assets that are not put o
use at the reporting date,

Set top boxes are treated as part of Capital Work In Progress till at the end of the month of activation, after which the same are depreciated.

(ii) Depreciation on Tangible Assets
Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight line method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the Management. Depreciation

for assets purchased / sold during the period is proportionately charged. Leaschold land is amortized over the effective period of lease The
details of estimated life for each category of asset are as follows:

Asset Estimated useful life based on SLM
Buildings 60 years

Computers and Data Processing Equipment 3 years

Plant and Machinery 8 years

Set Top Boxes 8 years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Studio Equipments 13 years

Office Equipments 3 years

Softwares which are an integral part of Property, Plant and 6 years

The residue value, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,




(iii) Disposal of Assets

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 1o arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss,

(d) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets comprises of VC Card, Cable Television Franchise, Bandwidth Rights and Softwares. Intangible Assets acquired separately
are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognistion, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Asset Estimated useful life based on SLM
Software and VC Cards 6 years

¢) Impairment of Assets

(i) Financial Assets

For the purpose of computation of expected credit loss, the Company has analysed the trend of provisions for doubtful debts created in earlier
vears and has also considered the fact that the Company has revenue from DAS customers which has been booked as per prepaid model of
hilling. The expected credit loss has been computed on basis of recoverability (after analysing cach head scparately) for DAS customers.
Further, the Company has analysed expected credit loss separately for carriage revenue customer ( including Marketing & Placement Income
customers) and other than carriage revenue customer primarily because the characteristics and historical losses trend was different in these two
streams.

(ii) Non-Financial Assets

The Carrying amount of the fixed assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard-36 on
“Impairment of Assets™ prescribed by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) rules as amended from time to time. fo determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. Impairment test is performed for an individual asset, unless asset does not generate cash flows that are
largely independent. Otherwise the assets are tested for Cash Generating Units (CGUs). An Impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss if the assets or CGU's carrying amount exceeds the greater of Fair value less cost or Value in use. Reversal of Impairment are
recognised through Statement of Profit and Loss except those routed through reserves.

(f) Leases

‘Where the Company is a lessor

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating
leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in Property, Plant and Equipment. Lease income on an operating lease is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss on monthly rental basis, wherever applicable over the lease term.

Where the Company is a lessee

The Company, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset.

The contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an identified asset and the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset and has right to direct the use of the identified asset. The cost of the right-of-use
asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is subscquently measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset.

The Company measures the l¢ase liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate.

For short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

g) Borrowing Cost
Borrowing Costs are the interest or the other cost which the entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of the funds. These include interest
expense calculated using the Effective interest method as per Ind AS 109, Borrowing cost which are directly attributable 1o the acquisition,
construction or production of a "Qualifying Asset” are included in the cost of the asset when it is probable that they will result in the future
economic benefit to the entity and it's cost can be measured reliably,




h) Inventories
Inventories are valued as follows-
Stock in trade & Stores and spares valued at cost on weighted average method or at net realisable value whichever is lower,
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

i) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services o a customer for an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured at the fair value of
consideration received or receivable taking into account the amount of discounts, rebates, outgoing taxes on sales of goods or services.

(i) Subscription Income
Subscription income includes subscription from subscribers/ Cable Operators relating to cable TV. Revenue from Operations is recognised on
accrual basis based on underlying subscription plan or agreements with the concerned subscribers/ Cable Operators.

(i) Marketing and Placement Income
Marketing and Placement Income is recognized on accrual basis over the terms of related agreement/ negotiations provided that there is no
significant uncertainity regarding the realisable amount of consideration.

(iii) Income From Activation of Services

The Company has adopted Ind As 115 and accordingly these financial results are prepared in accordance with recognition and measurement
principals laid down in Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. In pursuance of the same, Income from activation of digital
cable services is recognised as revenue over the initial contract period.

(iv) Income From Broadband Services
Income from broadband services (net of applicable taxes and duties) is recongnised on time proportion basis.

(v) Advertisement Income

Advertisement Income is recognised on accrual basis from the date(s) of insertion of advertisements based on the terms specified in the release
orders,

(vi) Other Services
Income from dark fiber leasing is recognized on acerual basis as per terms of the respective contracts.

(vii) Sules of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer,
usually on delivery of the goods. The company collects sales taxes, value added taxes and Goods & Service Tax (GST) on behalf of the
government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

J) Foreign Currency Transaction

Transaction in foreign currency is recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the transaction date (s). Transaction remaining unsettled, is
translated at the rate prevailing at the end of the financial year. The exchange rate difference arising there-from are adjusted in the Statement of
Profit & Loss.

k) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial linbility or equity instrument of another
entity.

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. The transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Profit or Loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly attributable

to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Profit and Loss are immediately recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest income or
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

B .




Compound Financial Instruments

Separation of instrument into its liability and Equity component is made at the time of Initial recognition. The fair value of liability component
establishes its initial carrying amount which is then deducted from the fair value of the instrument as a whole to arrive at the residual amount
being recognised as the equity component. The fair value of the liability component at the initial recognition is the Present value of the
contractual stream of future cash flow discounted at the market rate of Interest that would have been applied to the instrument of comparable
credit quality with substantially the same cash flow.

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial Assets

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to
colleet contractual eash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financtal assets at fatr value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within o business model whose
objective i1s achicved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised ¢ost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within
one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

(iii) Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

(iv) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptey of the counterparty.

1) Retirement and other employee benefits
Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due, Payments made to state managed retirement benefit schemes
are dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the Company's obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising
in & defined contribution retirement benefit scheme For defined benefit retirement schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using
the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement gains and losses of the
net defined benefit liability/ (asset) are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The service cost, net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/ (asset) is treated as a net expense within employment costs.
Past service cost is recognised as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or when any related restructuring costs or
termination benefits are recognised, whichever is earlier.
The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined-benefit obligation as reduced by the
fair value plan assets.




(m) Taxation

Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the reporting period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Statement
ol Profit and Loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. In contrast, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised,

Deferred tax is calculoted af the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised based on the
tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

(n) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, e-wallet balance, deposits held at call with banks and other short term deposits including the
Bank Overdraft.

(0) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

(i) General

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably estimated. Each provision is based
on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. When appropriate, provisions are
measured on a discounted basis,

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:

(a) by an established patiern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other
parties that it will accept certain responsibilities; and

(b) as aresult, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those responsibilities.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to he recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

(ii) Contingent Liabilities

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

(p) Earnings Per Share
Basic eamnings per share is computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period. The Company did not have any potentially dilutive securities in any of the periods presented.

(q) Segment Reporting
The company is a Multi System Operator providing Cable Television Network Services and Other Related services which is considered as the
only reportable segment. The company's operations are based in India.
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Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
( T thousands)

Note 4 : Intangible Assets

Particulars Software & VC Cards
Year ended 31st March 2022

Gross Carrying Amount as at 01 April 2021 58,031
Additions 15
Closing Gross Carrying Amount as on 31st March 2022 58,046
Accumulated Depreciation 48,621
Amortisation for the year 6,144
Closing Accumulated Amortisation 54,765
Closing Net Carrying Amount as on 31st March 2022 3,281

Year ended 31st March 2023
Gross Carrying Amount

Opening Gross Carrying Amount as on 01 April 2022 58,046
Additions 65
Disposal (L331)
Closing Gross Carrying Amount as on 31st March 2023 56,780
Opening Accumulated Amortisation 54,765
Amortisation charge for the year 2,523
Disposal (1L,331)
Closing Accumulated Amortisation 55,957
Closing Net Carrying Amount as on 31st March 2023 823




Siti Mauryn Cable Net Private Limited
Notes to financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(¥ ihousinds)
5 Other financinl assets (non-current) Mm:’J:t 2023 Mm:l J: 2022
Security deposity
Unseeursd, considered goad 3,103 3,165
3,105 3168
6 Deffered tax assets / (liabilities) SRl i
Deferved tix assets
Fined et Impact of diff between (ux deprecintion and 26,314 12,299
deprecintion/ amortiestion charged for the financial repamng
Impaet of Unabsorbed deprecintion /carried forward losses 5,493 7,708
Frovision for doubtful debes and advances 10,802 10427
Impact of expenditure charged 1o fie stastemant of profit mnd loss in the 1am 1259
curment year bul allowed for wx purposes an povment basis
Gross deferred tx asset 43,880 31,689
Net deferved tax asset! (Habilities) 43880 31,689
7 Inventories Asat As at
Muarch 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Stored and spares 484 M5
(Valued at lower of cost or net réalisable valug) 488 945
Asat Asut
8 Trade receivables March 31,2023 Mareh 31,2022
Trade ivables considered good - U d Includes Rs 791 thousands (PY Rs 255 thousands) receivable from
entities in which di is parmer , ber or di ) 46,677 73,014
Trade receivables cansidered good - Credit impared 42,920 41,428
Total 89,597 1,149,442
Lesy' Provision for Expecied Cradit Loss 42,920 41,428
46,677 73,014
—
Ageing of Trade receivables outstanding as on 51.03,2025
Outsianding for following periods from due date of paymeni
Particul :‘:m'h; . 'r“u:' 7 1-2 years 2-3 years m Total
(1) Undispisted - Trade ivables — idered good 24.807 11,051 3918 3470 3430 46,677
(1) Undisputed Trade R bles — which have significant increase
in eredit risk - - . - - -
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 3,588 1,389 10,3(3 1,384 26,295 42,920
(iv) Disputed Trade Re: bles: dered good - . - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant imcresse in
credit risk - - - - - -
{v1) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
TOTAL 28306 12441 14,221 45824 29,715 849,597
Less - Allowance for Credit Loss 42,920
Total Trade Recelvables as on March 31, 2023 46,677
Agring of Trade recelvables outstanding as on 31,03.2022
Ouistanding for following penods fram due date of payment#
Less than 6 months - More than
| Particulars R P 12 years 2-3 years e Total
(1) Undisputed - Trade bles idered good 36,615 9,666 8,019 #94 1083 56,271
(it) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have sigmificant increase
in eredit risk - - - - - -
(i) Undisputed Trade R bles — credit impaired 1654 10237 1354 14,155 14,028 41,428
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good 7.263 9474 16,737
(v) Disputed Trade Recervables — which have significant increase in
credit rik - E - - = =
(i) Dispuited Trade Receivables — wrodit unpaired - - - - - -
[TOTAL 45533 29077 93] isee9 15111 114,442
Less : Allowance for Credit Loss 4l
Total Trade Receivaliles as on March 31, 2022 73,014
Asat Asat
9 Cush and Uank balances March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Cash und cash equivalents
Cash i hand 1,604 .
(Includes Wallet balance / POS Balance Rs 633 thousands (CY) Ra 733 thousends (PY))
Cheques in hand 1179 6,860
Balanees with banks
I current necounts 2398 a8
I fixed deposit account (with matunty less than three months) 10,872 10,389
16,054 20,359




Siti Mauryn Cable Net Private Limited
Notes to finuncial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(T thousands)
A Asat
10 Ottier Bank Balances Mnr:h’l:: 2023 March 31,202
In fixed deposit account (with maturity more than three monthi) —_  32R0B 31305
32,808 31,305
Afat Asat
11 Loans snd ndvances Murch 31,2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Unsecured, considéted good = .
As at As nt
12 Others finuncinl assets March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Unbilled revenue 6,676 3,585
Intarest secrued but not due 2,512 -
92,191 5,585
As at Asar
131 Current maisety (Net) March 31,203 March 31, 2022
Advance iy 45,481 36,206
Lesz: Provision lor Incamne Tas 25,536 25,330
12,948 lﬂﬂ
14 Other curreni ussets M";;::mn Muﬂl“’.’l: w12
Prepald expenses 1,307 1,904
Other advances 8,723 1190
Balances with stanory authoritles ald 12.216
10,645 15310
15 Share capital Asat As ot
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Authorised share capital
90,30,000 (90,30,000) Equity Shares of Ra. 1 0/~ each 90,300 90,300
Total authorised capital 90300 90,300
Issued share capital
0.27.976 (90,27,976) Equity Shares of Rs. |- euch 90,280 90,250
Totnl issued capitel 90,280 90,250
Subacribed and fully paid up capital
90.27,976/(90,27,976) Equity Shares of Rs. 105 each 90,280 90,280
Total paid up eapital 90,280 90,250
Disclosure pursuant 1o Note no. 6(A)(d) of Part | of Schedute 111 to the Comy Act, 2013
Reconcilation of the number of shares ling and the of share capital us ut March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are set out below
(1) Equity Shares
31-Mur-23 3i-Mar-22
Particulars No. of Shares Amount | Ne. of Shares held Amount
held W) P ")
Outstanding at the beginning of the year MNL27.976 90,280 90,27 976 90,280
Issued during the vear . - - .
Bought back during the vear - - - -
Any ather movemen! (please spocify) - - - =
Outstanding a1 the end of the period $0,27.976 90280 9027976 90,280
Disclosure pursunnt 1o Note no. 6{A)e) of Part 1 of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013
Terma.& nehis apached to equity shanes
The company hus anly one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 1o oné voie per share.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders oF equity shates will be entitled 10 receive remmning assets of the pany, after distrik of all pref | The
hintrik will be to the number of equity shares hald by the shatsholdses
Disclosure pursuant to Note no, 6(A)NN of Part I of S 111 to the C Jes Act, 2013
Out of Equity shares ssued by the Company, shares held by ts holding company, ultimate holding pany and their subsidi are a5 below:
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Particulurs No. of Shares Amount | No, of Shares held Amount
LLM;_ R 000
Equity Shares
Indian Cable Net Company Limited, the holding company 4523016 45,230 4523016 45,230

45,23,016 (45,23.016) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully poid

Indian Cable Net Company Limuted is subsidian: of it Network Limited and hence Sit Network Limited 1 utl holding pany. Siti N k Limited do not hold any
shareholding i1 the company,
Disclosure pursuant to Note no, GIAMED of Part 1 of Scb 1 to the bes Aet, 2013
Detuils of share holder holding more than 5% share as at Mareh 31 2023 and March 31, 2022
Equity Shares

As ar March 31, 2023 Asat Mareh 31,2022

Name of Shareholder S— -
No. of Shares | % of Holding [No. of Shares held * of Holding

held
Maury Diginet Pyt Lid A5.04,960 49904 45,04,960 49 904,
Indinn Casbile Net Co Lid. 45,23,016 50,10% 4523,016 S0.10%

'



Siti Maurya Cahle Net Private Limited
Notes to financial statem ents for the year ended March 31, 2023
Shares held by promoters af the end of the year

As ot March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Promoter Name “oftotal | % Change % Change
No. of Shares Shares during the year| No. of Shares | % of total Shares during the year
Maury Digine Pyt Lid 45,04 960 49 0P - 49 90% 0.00% 0. {101%
Indian Cahle Nei Co Lid 4523016 50,1004 - 50108, 0.00% 0.00%
(T thausands)
Asat Asat
L March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
—_— s hieles
Securities preadum account
Balance at the beginnny of the vear T4 000 T0,000
Bulance ut the end of the year 70,000 70,000
Surplus / (Deficit) in the Statement of profir and Joss
Balanee ui the beginning of the year 75327 108,657
Add. Prafit / (Loss) for the vear (38,324) (33.330)
Other Comprehensive Income Aiki ]
Balance 2t the and of the vear 37,408 18327
1,07,408 145327
Asmt As i

17 Provigions {non-current)

Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 15)

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Pravision for gratuiy 2,650 2415
Provision for compensated absanices Loiz 1,241
Liabilty for STB Chum 33403 33,403
37,068 37,059

" Asal As it
18 Other non current labilities March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Inieres; free deposits from cusiomess 555 558
855 S88

As Asmt

19 Teade payables

Murch 31,2023 March 31, 2022
— s s areh M, el0i2

= Total sutstanding dues of micto enterprises and small enterprises; and

= Totul outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro, small and medium enterprises 94,663 1,20.874
Y R
Ageing of Trade Payable us on March 31,2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
. Less than 1-2 Yenrs 2-3 Years Morathey Total
Particulars | yenr 3 vears
MSME - - - - -
Others 20,924 62,257 1587 9805 94,663
Bisputed dues-MSME B a 5 - -
Disputed dues-Others = e = - -
Total Trade Payable as an March 31, 2023 20,924 62357 1,587 9,895 94,663
Ageing of Trade Payable as on March 31,2022
Outstanding for followin ods from due date of 1l
Lessthan | ) Vears | 2:3Vears | Morethan Total
Particulnrs 1 venr 3 yeary
MSME - . a . =
Others 1,08.740 LAIR 3209 7,217 120,874
Disputed dues-MEME = = = - :
Disputed dues-Others - = 5 = >
Totul Trade Payable as on March 31, 2012 1,08,740 1,618 1299 1217 120,874
As at As at
2 Other fnancial liabilities March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Book overdraft . ER T
Creditors for capinl gopds 835 11,654
B35 14,942
i As at As ut
21 Other curvent labilities March 31,2033 March 31, 2022
Uneamed Income 14,383 16,505
Advaniees from customers 4,147 6,547
Payable for stantory libilities 3410 i
Payable far contraciual Tiabilities 271 2719
24651 29,518
Asmt At at

22 Provisions (current) March 31,2033 March 31, 2022

Pravision for empl benefits (Refer Note 17)
Provisian for gratuity 29 191
Provision for compensated absences 93 104

3 195




Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

23 Revenue from operations

Sale of services

Subseription income

Advertisement income

Marketing & Placement income

Activation charges

Broadband Network Maintanance Service
Other operating revenue

Sale of traded goods*

Other networking and management income

* Details of sale of traded goods
Sale of STB & VC Cards
Store and spares

24 Other income

Interest income on
Bank deposits
Others
Excess Liability written back
Excess Provision written back
Gain On Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (Net)
Miscelleneous Income
Written Off Debtors Realised

25 Purchases of traded goods

Spare Parts & Accessories
Card less STB with Clients

26 (Increase)/ decrease in inventories

Inventories at the beginning of the year - Traded goods
Inventories at the end of the year - Traded goods
(Increase)/Decrease

27 Carriage sharing, pay channel and related costs

Pay Channel Expenses

Lease Rental of Set Top Boxes
Management Charges

Commission Charges and Incentives
Lease Rental & Right to Usage Charge
VC Card Licence/Software Fees
Other operational cost

( T thousands)

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
229354 2,72,507
59,582 49,800
1,13,751 1,03,364
1.800 1.466
195 6,301
109 196
3.217 3,317
4,08,008 4,36,951
7 14
101 182
109 196
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2,208 1,565
2,512 -
905 8,112
40 783
135 -
1,746 1,197
2,304 -
9,849 11,656
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
120 287
2 7
122 294
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
945 1,146
488 945
457 201
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
2,11,200 2,27,729
30,002 30,002
30,000 30,000
7,172 8,215
20,537 20,340
5,656 7,187
5,290 5,091
3,09,857 3,28,564

By
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Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

28 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, allowances and bonus

Contributions to provident and other funds

Gratuity fund contributions
Staff welfare expenses

29 Finance costs

Interest
Interest on statutory dues
Bank charges

30 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation of tangible assets (Refer note 3)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 4)

31 Other expenses

Rent
Rates and taxes
Communication expenses
Repairs and maintenance

- Network

= Building

- Others
Electricity and water charges

Legal, professional and consultancy charges

Travelling and conveyance expenses
Auditors' remuneration®

Vehicle expenses

Insurance expenses

Loss on Sale / Discard of Assets(net)
Provision for doubtful debts
Provision for STB Churn
Advertisement and publicity expenses
Rebate & Discounts

Business and sales promotion
Exchange fluctuation loss (net)
Assets/Excess provision written off
Miscellaneous expenses

32 Exceptional item
Written off of tax advances

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
20,140 21,358
1,835 1,976
608 580
1,861 2,175
24,444 26,088
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
- 673
4 119
12 27
16 818
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
98,742 71,153
2,523 6,144
1,01,265 77,297
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
5,685 4,389
685 694
515 488
1,740 2,162
- 18
151 152
2,697 2,940
1,003 1,222
2,955 2,454
614 582
151 285
20 26
1,374 P
1,492 5
- 28,676
80 172
- 107
222 305
- 52
- 1.901
2,158 2,021
21,542 48,647
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
10,670 -
10,670 -

P
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Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note No. 33 ( ¥ thousands)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FY 22-23 FY 21-22
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans as under 405.52 0.23
Remeasurement of employee benefit obligations
(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassfied to profit or loss =
B (1) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - =
(ii)Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassfied to profit or loss - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 405.52 0.23
Note No. 34
Earii " Year Ended Year Ended
arnings per share 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs) in '000s (37.919) (33,330)
Number of weighted average equity shares
Basic 90,27,976 90,27,976
Diluted 90,27,976 90,27,976
Nominal value of per equity share (Rs) 10 10
Earning Per Share (Rs)
Basic (4.20) (3.69)
Diluted (4.20) (3.69)
3 Y
(W
e
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Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
Notes to financinl stntements for the year ended March 31,2023

Fair value measurements
Acconnting classification nnd fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial lobilities aa at March 11, 2023,

A. Financial insteam ents by category (z thousands)
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Amortised Amortised
FVTPL | FVOCI cost FYTPL Fvoct cost
Finuncial assey (Non Current & Currem)
Security deponits (Non current) - - 3,105 - - 3,165
Unbilled revenoes - - 9,191 - - 5.585
Trade receivables - - 46,677 - - 73,014
Cash and cash equivalents - - 16,054 - - 20,389
Other bank balances - - 32,808 - - 31,305
Total financial assets - - 1,07,835 - - 133,458
Financial liahilities (Non Current & Current)
Trade payables . . 94,663 - - 1,20,874
Other financial liabilities (current) - - 835 - - 14,942
Total financial liabilities - - 95,498 - - 135,816 |
**The Company has not disclosed the fair values for financial mstruments such as cash & cash equivalénts, short term trade receivables, short term trade payables because their carrying
ured ble approximation of far value

Financinl risk management objectives and policies

Finuncial risk managem ent

The Company's prineipal financial liabiities comprise trade and other pavables. The main purpose of these fi wal liabil 15 to finance the Company's i
guaraniees to support its aperations. The Company's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term depomits that derive directly from its operations.
The Company's activities expose it 1o a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for mannging esch of these
risks, which are summarised below:

A Credit risk
Credit risk s the sk that o or party to u finangiul wall fail to perform or pay due to the Company ing financial loas. The Company's exposure 1o
eredit fisk 15 influenced mamly by cash and cash quivalents, trade bles and financial nssets measured at d cost. The Company i ly itors defaults of

wiid other counterparties and incorporaes this information into its eredit risk controls

Credit risk management

Credit risk rating

The Company and credit nsk of financinl assets based on following categories arrived on the basis of assumptions, nputs and factors specific to the class of financial
assets

A Low credit risk on finuncial reporting date

B: High credit risk
The Company provides for expected aredit luss based on the following:
Asset group Basis of categorisation Provision for expectod credit loss
Cash and cash equivalents and other fi | ansets Llfeumexpecledcrudlllnnmfullymvﬁed
Low credit nisk except Trade Receivable,security depossts and for
amount recoverable
High cesdit rigk Trade bles, security deposits, unbilled Life time expected credit loss or fully provided
revenue and amount recoverdble for

Based on business environment in which the Company operates, a default on a financinl asset is considered when the caunter party fails to make payments within the agreed time period as
per contract Lods rates reflecting defaults are based on actunl credit loss experience and considering differences between current and historical economic conditions.

( ¥ thousands)

Credit rating Particulars 31-Mar-23  31-Mar-22

Cash and cash equivalents and ather financial assets

Low ¢redit risk except Trade Receivable, security deposits and 48,802 51,694
amount recoverable
Fih oredit rigk R h Smeuify capesits, anbilled 58973 81,764

revenue and amount recoverable

Concentration of trade receivables
The Company has widespread customers and there is no concentration of trade receivables:
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Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023

Credit risk exposure
Provision for expected credit losses
Fcrﬁnapumuwofaunwamnufnxpuctednredilln!s,thef‘ pany has analysed the rend of provi for doul ful debts created in earlier years and has also considered the fact that
the Company has e from DAS which has bees booked #s per prepaid mode! of billing. The expected credit loss has been computed on basis of recoverability (after
analysing each head sep ly) for DAS 3. Further, the Company has analysed exg d eredit Joss separately for carriage (including Marketing & Pl
Income oustomers) and other than carnuge primarily | the ch istics and historical lusses trend was different in these two streams The company does not
expest any further rsk of eredit imp on of possible impact relating to COVID 19 in estimating expected credit loss provision
Expected credit loss for irade recelvables, security deposit and ble under simplified approack
as at March 31, 2023 (2 thousands)
n::::“ Expected Carrylng
Ageing earrying eredit Amoutiet of
impairment
amount at Tosses provision
default
Trade receivables 89,597 42,920 46,677
Segurity Deposit 3,108 - 3,108
Unbilled Revenue 9,191 - 9,191
asat March 31, 2022 { T thougands)
Estimated Carrying
s gros CHpacti amount net of
Ageing earrying credit Impalement
amount at lodses
provision
— default
Trade recervables 114,442 41,428 73,014
Secunty Deposit 3,165 - 3165
Unbulled Revenue 5,588 - 5,585
Reconell of loss all provigion - Trade recewvables ( T thousands)
Laoss allowance on March 31,2022 41,428
Changes in loss allowance 1492
Loss allowance on March 31, 2023 42,920
B. Liguidity risk
Liquidity nisk 15 the rnak that suitabl of funding for the Company's busi ties may not be availabl
Prudent liquidity risk 2 1 implies ining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate smount of committed eredit facilines to
meet obligniions when due and 10 close out market positions Management monitors rolling forecasts of the C pany s liguidity position (comprising the und borrowing facilities) and
cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows Shart term liquidity req s comp mainly ofuadepnynblumdmpluyeedmnriungdurmsnpma! course of
business s on each balance sheet dite. Long- term liquidity requirement is assessed by the management on periodical basis and is ged through irternal ls and through funding
comnutinents from shareholders. As ot each st of financial ¢ date, the Company’s linbilities baving | ities (including interest p where appli ) are

sunimurised an follows;

(i) Muturities of lnancial liabilities
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractus] undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

(¥ thousands)
31-Mar.23 31-Mar-22
Caontractunl maturities of fnancinl linbilities | Less than 0:: 19 Morethan | Lessthan | Ometotwo | More than
ane year “:1 two years one year Years two years

Non-derivatives
Other financial lisbilites 815 = 14,942 - 2
Trade payables 94,663 - - 1.20,874 - -
Total non-derivative linbilities 95,498 - - 1,35,816 - -
C.Market Risk
Market nisk 53 the risk that changes in market prices - such a3 foreign exchange rates and interest rates - will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The abjective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exy within acceptabl while optimising the return,

The Company 18 not exposed to such risk as Campany does not have any borrowangs, foreign eurrenty transactions and dos riot have any derivative trasactions

Capital munagement

Risk Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to sapport its busineds and provide adeg
return to shareholders through continuing growth The Company's overall strategy remains unchanged from previous year. The Company sets the amount of capital required of the basis of
annual business and long-term operating plans which meludo capital and other steategic investments The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation

and other non-current borrowings: The Company's policy 1 1o use current and nen-urrent borfovangs to meet anticipated funding req The Company s capital on the
basis of the gearing rotio which 15 net debt divided by total capital (equity plus net debt) . The Campany is not subject to any lly imposed capital requi Net debt are non-
current and current borrowings as reduced by cash and cash eqiuvatents, other bank bal and current i Equity comy all I including other eomprehensi

Incame




Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
Notes to finuncial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{ T thow is)
Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Cash and cash equivalems 16,054 20,389
Ohther bank balances 32,808 31,305
Total eash (A) 48,862 51,694
Borrowings (nori current, financial liabilities) i c
Borrowings (current fingncial linbilities) - -
Current matunities of long-term borrowings - -
Total borrowing (H) - -
Net debt (C=B-A) 48,862 51,694
Total equity 1,97,688 235,606
Total eapital (equity + net debts) (D) 1 ] 1 12
Gearing ratio (C/D) -33% -28%

Classification and messurement of financinl assets and liabilities

The classification and measurement of financial assets will be made considering whetheér the conditions as per Ind AS 109 are met based on facts and circumstances
existing at the date of transition,

Finaneial assets can be measured using effective i hod by ing its contractual cash flow characteristics only on the basis of facts and circumstances existing
at the date of transition and if it is impracticable to assess clements of modified time value of money i.e. the use of effictive interest method, fair value of financial asset at
the date of transition shall be the new carrying amount of that asset. The measuremettt exemption applies for financial labilities as well.

Applying a requirement is impracticable when an entity cannot apply it after making every reasonable effort to do so. It is impracticable to apply the changes
retrospectively if

) The effects of the rerospective application or retrospective restatement are not determinable;
b) The retrospective application or restatement requires assumptions about what management's intent would have been in that period,

The remospective application or retrospective restatement requires sigmificant estimates of amounts and it is impossible to distinguish objectively information about those
estimates that existed at that time.

@‘1
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38 Tax Expenses

The major components of Income Tax for the year are as under:

( ¥ thousands)
Mar-23 Mar-22

Income tax related to items recognised directly in the statement of profit and loss
Current tax - current year - -

-carlier years e =
Deferred tax charge / (benefit) (12,191) 28
Total (12,191) 28
Effective tax rate 25.17% 25.17%

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to the profit before income tax at statutory rate to the income tax expense at
the Company's effective income tax rate for the year ended 31 March, 2023 and 31 March, 2022 are as follows:

( T thousands)
Mar-23 Mar-22

Profit before tax (50,110) (33,303)
Income tax
Statutory income tax on profit (12,612) (8,382)
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 26,714 27,146
Additional allowances for tax purposes (11,923) (26,470)
Temporary differences in respect of unutilised tax losses, (2.180) 7,705
Others / Deferred Tax effect (12,191) 28
Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss (12,191) 28

The applicable statutory Income Tax rate is 25.17% for the FY 2022-23 (25,17% for FY 202 1-22).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to do so. For analysis of the deferred

tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes refer note no-6.

Deferred tax recognised in statement of profit and loss

( T thousands)

For the year ended Mar-23 Mar-22
Employee retirement benefits obligation (13) (211)
Allowances for credit losses 2,212 (7,705)
Depreciation and amortisation (14,015) (7,153)
Other disallowances (375) 15,096
Total (12,191) 28
( ¥ thousands)

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) net: Mar-23 Mar-22
Opening balance 31,689 31,717
Deferred tax (charge)/credit recognised in

-Statement of profit and loss 12,191 (28)

-Recognised in other comprehensive income - -
Total 43,880 31,689
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Details of dues to micro and small enterprises us defined under the MSMED Act 2006,
The management has identified dues to micro and small enterprises ag defined unde
or vendors of the Company The di

fi ion made available by the

s
L o

r Micre, Small and Medi

Enterprises Development At 2006 as on March 31, 2023 together with interest paid or payable under this Act i NIL

Ad per Section 135 of Companies At 2013, 8 CSR Committee had been Formed

Act. The utilisation is done by way of contribution towards various nchivities,

(a) Avernge net profit as prescribed under soction 135 of the Companies Act 2013: 2 (16,622 th
(b) Hence the company is ot liable to spend its funds in the activities which are specified in Schedule VIT s mentioned in the S

Cantingent linbilities (1o the extent not provided for)

Enterprises De

ds) (PY % (891 th is))

Claims ugainst the Company not acknowledged as debts #4 113,080 Thousands (Previaus Year ¥ 114,263 Thousands)

## 1t meludes demands raised by staturary auth ies being d by the company € 10,110 th

In addition, the Y 15 subject to legal p

financial conditions

The

wRly

broadband services hiss been recognised.

Gratuity and other employment benefit plans
Defined contribution plan

Coritribution ta defined contribution plan, recognised as expense for the year are as unider ~

Defined benefit plan

ding and claims, which have arisen in the ordi
reasonbly expect that their legal action, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a mat

Bp
Cable Net Company Limited ("ICNCL"), All the revenue and CXpEnses W.rL intermet services are collected/incurred by ISP
tncome from internet services (net of expenses) would be paud to the company for which billing is done
been exccuted. In the eurrent financial year the income from internet services is more than the expenses

ds (Previous Year 2 2,021 thoysands)

Act, 2006 (MSMED) on the basis of
lating to amount unpaid of venders registered under the Micro, Small and Medium

by the Company, The funds are utilised in the activities which are specified in Schedule V11 of (he

ing the broadband services / intemet services to the subseribers through Indinet Service Pvi. Lid ("

(1) The detiil of employee benefit for the peniod in fespect of gratuity which is funded defined benefit plan are as under

vy course of b T
enial and adverse effoct on the company’s result of operation or

a_Present value of obligations (¥ thousands)
PARTICULARS From 01-04-2022 to 31-03-2023 | From 01.04-2021 to 31-03-2021
Present Value of Obligation at the beginning of the 2.406 2082
period
Interest Cost 189 151
Current Service Cost 419 429
Past Service Cost - -
Benefits pid (if any) (268) (83))
Actuarial (gams)loss (68) 25
iP‘mscnt Value of Obligation at the end of the period 2,879 1,606
b Nev:Asset / (Liability) ¢ d in the balance sheet (% thousands)
PARTICULARS From 01-04-2022 1o 31-03-2023 From 01-04-2021 1o 31-03-2022
|Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 2879 2.606
Fair Value of plan assets af the end of the period - =
Net Liability/(assets) recognised in Bulance Sheet and
related analysia 2879 2,606
Funded Status - Surplus / (Deficit) (2,879) (2,606)|
Best estimate for contribution during next petiod 477 482
. Expense Recognised in the stute of profit & loss account (T thousands)
PARTICULARS From 01-04-2022 t0 31-03-2023 | From 01-04-2021 to 31-03-7022
Interest Cost 189 151
Current Service Cost 419 429
Expécted return on Plan Assets - -
Expenses 1o be recognised i the Profit & loss Accourit 608 580
d_Other comperhensive (icome)exp {Re. ) { Tk is)
PARTICULARS From 01-04-2022 to 31-03-2023 | From 01-04-2021 to 31.03-2022
Cumulative unrecognized actuarinl (gain)/loss opening, im 250
Acturial (gain)/loss-obligati (68) 29
Adturinl (gain)/loss-plan assets = ¥
Total Acturial (gain)loss (68) S
Cumulative total setuarial (gam)/loss C/F 211 279
e Liahility (T Is)
Period As on March 31, 2023 As on March 31, 2022
Current Laability 229 191
Non Current Liability 2,650 2415
Total Linbility 2,879 2,606

ISPL™) which is wholly owned subsidinry of Indian
L itself It has been mutually agreed that a portioh of
by the company to ISPL. The agreement for sharmg of sbove has also
incurred and hence billing ts done by the company and revenue from the

does not
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{ The sssumptions employed by sctuary for the calculutions are tabulsted:

Period From 01-04-2022 10 31-03-2023 | From 01-04-2021 to 31-03-2022
| Discount mte 7.55% pa 7.25% p.a
Salury Growth Rate 5.00% p.a S500%pa
Mortality IALM 2012-14 TALM 2012-14
Expected rate of return - -
Withdrawal rate | Per Annum) 5.00% pa 5.00% pa
(i) The detail of employee benefit for the period in respect of lewve encashment which is funded defined benefit plan are as undes
& Present value of obli (2 th ds)
PARTICULARS From 01-04-2022 to 31-05-2023 From 01-04-2021 to 31-03-2022
Pr::;: Value of Obligation at the beginning of the 1345 1127
Interest Cast 97 82
Current Service Cost 176 237
Benefits paid {if any) {175] 72)
Actutinial (gains)/loss (338) 29)]
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 1,108 1,345
b Net Asset/ (Liability) gnized i the bal sheet (T th ]
PARTICULARS From 01-04-2022 to 31-03-2023 | From 01-04-1021 1o 31-03-2022
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 1,105 1,345
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the period - -
Net Linbility/{nssets) recognised in Balance Sheet and 1,10 1,345
related analysis
Funded Statiis - Surplus / (Defi cit) (1,105) (1,345)
¢. Expense Recognised in the statoment of profit & loss account (¥ thousands)
PARTICULARS From 01-04-2022 10 31-03-2023 From 01-04-2021 (o 31-03-2022
Interest Cost 97 82
Cutrent Service Cost 176 237
Expected return on Plan Assets - -
iElp_enuu 1o be recognised in the Profit & loss Aceount 273 319
d Other comperhensive (income)expenses( Re-measurement) (Tth ds}
PARTICULARS From 01-04-2022 1o 31-03-2023 From 01-04-2021 to 31-03-2022
Cumulative gmized wl (gain)oss opening @7 (17
Acturml {guin)/loss-abl At {338) {29)
Acturial (gaim)/loss-plan assets - -
Total Acturial (gin)/loss (338) (29)
Cumulative total actuarial (gain)/loss CIF (384) (47)
o Linbility (2 th 1s)
Period As on March 31, 2023 As on March 31, 2022
Current Lagbality 23 104
Non Current Liabality 1,012 1,241
Total Linbility 1,105 1,345
fThe assumptions emploved by actuary for the ealoulations are tabulated
Period From 01-04-2022 1o 31-03-2023 From 01-04-2021 to 31403-2022
[Discount rate 7.50% p.a 725% pa
Salury Jiowth Rate 3.00% pa 300% pa
Mortality TALM 2012-14 TALM 2012-14
Expected rate of return - -
Withdrawal rate ( Per Annum) 500% pa 5.00% pa

& Discount Rate 1 based on the previuling market yield of Indian Government Securities’ as the balance sheet as date for expected term of obligation,

b. Salary Escalotion rate is based on estimates of future salary increases taking into consideration of mfation, sénority, f and other ral factors
Payment to Auditors {2 th ds)
PARTICULARS 31-Mar-23|  31-Mar-22
Audit Fees 283 264
Toax Audit Fees 142 132
Limited Review Fees 189 17
[Other Services 117 15
Reimbursement 60 33
[TOT)\L 791 637

©
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The Company predenunantly operates in a single business segment of cable distribution in India only Hence there are no separately reportable busi or geographi
a5 per Indian Accounting Standard (*Ind AS") 108 an Operating Segments. The aforesaid is in line with the way operating results are reviewed by the chief operting decision
muker(s),

Lenses

The Company incurred Rs 35,688 thousands for the year énded March 31, 2023 towards expenses relating to short-term leases and leased of low-value assets

Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertains for premises and Set Top Boxes taken on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary course. The Campany does not
have any lease restrictions and commitment towards variable rent as pet the contract

Value of Imports ealealnted on CIF Basis (¥ th is)
Particluars 31-Mur-23 3l-Mu—21_'
Capual Goods 523 11,662
623 11,662
Expenditure in foreign currency (i il
Particulars 31-Mar-23  31-Mar-22
Annual Mamenance Charges 206 £
206 =

Useful Life of certain mngible assets have been re-gaseased and accordingly there is an increase in depreciation expense of Rs 16,664 thousands dunng the year ended March 31,
2023

For the year ended March 31, 2023, the *Subscription income” included m the ‘Revenue from pera " these fi I st inter ulip, includes the payable to

the brondeasters townrds their share per Tanff order 2017 in rolation to the pay channels subscribed by the 5 The afi joned ponding (ie

Broodcaster’s share) has also been d as an m these financial The said amount is Rs 2,11.200 thousands for the year ended March 31, 2023 in the
dulone financial

Had these expenses been disclosed on net basis, the *Reveniie from operations® and the “pay channel and related costs’ each would have been lower by Rs 2,11,200 thousonds for
the year ended March 31, 2023 in the finahcial statements. However, there would not have been any impact on the net loss for the year ended in the financial statemerits

Exceptional Item includes: (¥ thoussnds)

Particluars 31-Mar-13 _ 31-Mar-22

Written off of tax advances 10,670 Nil
10,670 Nil

During the year ended March 31, 2023 the company has written off the tax sdvarices of Rs 10670 thousands,

With the introduction of Goods and Service Tax in the vear 2017 various centeal and state tax has been abolised Accordingly the Enter Tax 13 no more levied on the
service provided by the company since July 2017, In view of the management, the refund of tax advance lying it entertainment tax department is doubtful and hence the
manugement has decided to written off the same during the year, These adjustments, having onie- time, non routine material impact on financmnl statements, hence been disclosed
ns "Excey | Iremn in Fi il Results"

In the opinion of the Board of Ditectors the cutrent assets, loans and advances shown in the Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2023 are considered good and fully recoverable,
except otherwise stated and pravision for all known lisbilities has been made in the accounts

Net balances of Loans & Advances, Trade Reccivables, Trade Payables, and other assets & ligbilities ate subject 1o confirmation.
Revenue from contracts with customers

(A) Disagaregation of revenue (T th Is)
Yeur Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31-Mur-23 SI-I\&"-‘R

Revenue from operations
Sule of servicey

Subseription income 229354 272,507
Adverfisement income 59,582 49 800
Murketing & placement income 1,13,751 1,03,364
Activation and Sct top boxes pairing charges 1,800 1,466
Broadband income 195 6,301
Other operating revenne
Sale of traded goods 109 196
Other networking and management income 3,217 3317
4,058,008 4,36.951

The Company has disaggregated the revenue from contracts with customers on the basis of nature of services/goods sold The Company believes that the
disaggregation of revenue on the basis of nature of services/goods sold has no impuict on the nature, amount, timing & uncertainty of revenues and cash flows
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(B) Contract Balances
The Company classifies the right to ideration in exch Tor delverables as either a receivable or as unbilled revenue.
Trade reccivable and unbilled revenues are presented net of impasrment in the Bulance Sheet

The follywing table provides information about receiviibles, t assets and contract linbilities for the contracts with the customers,
(Tth ds)
Year Ended Year Ended
Pnrliculnn 31-Mar-23 31-Mur-22
bles, which are included in Trade and other receivables 46,677 73,014
Contract assets (Unbilled Revenge) 6,679 5,585
Cantract liabilities {Unearned Revenue) 14,383 16,905
67,739 95,504
The cantract assets primarily relate 1o the Company's rights 1o deration for work leted but not biflled ar the reporting date. The contract assets are

transferred to receivables when the rights became un:am!:tmnll The contract labilities prnmanly relate 1o the billing recounized in advance where performance
obligations are yet to be satisfied

Significant changes in the contract assets and the contract liabilities balances during the yeor are as follows.

(T I.Iwmnlll!

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Particulars Contraet Contract
linbilities linbilities
Balance at the beginning of the year 16,903 17,834
Add Ad Incorme tved from the cust during the year 14,383 16,905
Revenue recognised that is included 16,905 17,534
Balance at the end of the year 14,383 16,905
{€) Performance Obligations and animng Performance Obligations
The remuining performance obli provides the agaregate amount of the transaction price yet 1o be mcosmztd a5 at the end of the reporting period
nndnnuxplnnmmulnudnnrhaf pany expects to recognize these m revente. Applying the | dient a8 given in Ind AS 115, the
Campany has not disclosed the g perfi as the perfi bliga relates to that have an mgm-! expected duration of one year or
less
R:rmsnmg perl'mnmwe nbl:galmn estimates are subject to change and are nffected by several factors, includ g i hanges in the scope of contracis,
I Jl for revenue thut has not materialized and adjustments for currency
55 Ratio Analysis
Particulars N D Casliycrnamiin Variunce in % Remarks
2023 2022
{0} Current Ratio Cument Assels | Cutrent 115 04s (21.38) | Reduction in Trade Payable and Increase m
Linbilities C
(b) Debi-Equuty Ratio # [Total Debt Shire holder's NA NA NA
Equity
() Dbt Service EBIDTA Debt Servico## - 720 100,00 | Berrowing repaid i last year iself
(i)
(d) Retum on Equity  [PAT Average (0.18) 0.13) (33.89) |Increase in Loss in Curent Year
Reitity Shareholders
() Inveitory tumover  [Cost of Matenials [Average [T 047 (70.55) | Consurription of Materials for Repairs and
ftio Consumed Inventones Maintainance incremsed
0 Trade Receivables | Net Revenue Avernge Trade 682 39 [15.22) | Decrease in Trade Receivable
{41111 1] I eI vahl,
14} Trade payatiles Vet Expenses Tor |Average Trade 304 27 231} [Reduction in Trade Payable
wmover ratio which crediy Puyable
purchase is
il
(h) Net capital tumover | Total Tncome Waorking Capital 2279 (5334) 14272 |Reduetion in R from O &
I loy 1
(1) Mt profit rtio PAT Total Income (0.09) ({0un [23.44) [ in Loss in Current Year
(1) Relwm on Copltal — |EBITA Avernge Capital 0 18) (0,13} (42.19) |Increase in Loss in Current Year
employed Employed
(k) Retum on NA NA NA
iny L fidbH
#The Company has no debts in current as well as last year
#4 Debt Service = Principal Repayment = Interest Exp
### Net Expenses for which crodit purchase 15 g = Total E - Finance Costs - Empl Benefits E - Cost of M Is O - Dy ition and
Amortisation Expenses - Fates and txes - Wrue oIT ol‘Am Prnvu:un for Clum\ STB' - Provision for Expected Credl: Loss - Provision for doubtful ndv-m:u Rebate and
Discount - Bad debts - Corporate Social Resp e-E ige ion loas - Loss on Sale of Assets
##44 The Company has no Investment in current as wrll as Ian year.
‘)

A _
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56 Reluted Party Disclosure

List of parties where control Exists
@ Ultimate Holding Com pany
Siti Network Limited
b Holding Compuny
Indian Cable Net Company Limited
¢ Fellow Subsidiary Com pany
Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Private Limited
Indinet Service Pyt Lid
4 Enterprises owned or signifieantly influenced by KMP or their relutivesss
Maury Diginet Private Limited
Victor Distributors
Rajn Cable
Rajn Cable
Rai Cable
Raja Cable TV Network
RR Cable Network
Rai Cahle Network
New Rajn Cable
IT Agency
Maa Vaishanav Settlite Vision
Man Vaishnav Services
Maa Vaishanav Vision
Shiva Vistan
Mauz Laxmi Network
Global Cable
Muia Laxmi Network
Global Cable
Maa Laxmi Network
Global Cable
Nice Network
Puja Cable
Baba Bhole Digital Nerwork
Mahavir Star Network
Maa Ruyrappi Digital Cable Network
Baba Bhole Digital Cable Network
Lovely Digital Cable Network
Puja Rani Digital Cable Network
Kashi Vishwanath Cable Network

Prakash Cable Network
Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Sumil Nihalami Director
Mr. Rajeev Shorma Director
Mr. Rajnish Kumar Dixit Director
Mr, Niraj Kumar Sinha Director
Mr. Mudanjest Kumar Dhrector
Mr. Binod Kumar Rai Director
Mr. Muno Kumar Dirgctor
* Mr: Niwal Kumar Direotor
“Mr. Atul Kumar Singh Director
“ Mr. Suresh Kumar Sethiva Directir
* Mr Surendra Kumar Agarwala Director
* Mr. Jai Prakash Jindal Company Secretury
** with whom the Campany has transictions during the current year and previous year
Transactions with related parties ( ¥ thousands)
Furtliiacs Siti Networks Lid '“g:‘:pf::'i:" Maury Diginet Pyt Ltd Indinet Service Pyt Ltd.
FY 2223 | FY21-22 FY 22-23 FY21-22 FY 22-23 FY 21-22 FY22-23 | FY21-22
|Expenses pard on behalf of - 25210 - - - - = -
Payment for purchase of materin] & services 177 - 76,948 67,285 34,900 47437 - -
Purchase of materinl & Services {1,989) (1,647) {66,501) (58,438) (35,400) (35,637) - -
Expenses Reimbursed 1o - - 301 - - - - -
Sales of service and materials - - - - - - 1,448 6,216
Puyment received for sales of services/other - (123) (13,027)
recovenes - - - - -
Liabilities Taken over by - - - (25,210) - - -
Assets Taken aver - - - - - - (14.744) -
Outstanding at the begllmillg of year (0] (23,563) {45254) {28,870) {8,137) (19937} 13,418 20,229
Oufsl!.ndiug at the end of year (L,812) (U} (34.486) (45,234) (8.637) (8.137) [ 13,418
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Particulars Raja Cable New Raja Cable Rai Cable R.l.u_'a_(‘lbIeTV Network

FY 22-23 FY 21-22 FY 2223 FY 21-22 FY 22.23 FY 21-22 FY 2223 FY21-22
Sales of service and materials r 1952 2321 1,563 1,597 = - 455 554
Payment received for sales of services/other (452 {548)
recoveries (1.943) (2,313) {1,572) (1,589) . 4
Advances refunded to/ given 2 (L.777) 2 (38) - - - -
Liabilities Taken over by - - - = - = = {232)
Bad Debts wntten off - 1) - (92) - (33) - (94)
Ouistanding at the beginning of year | 1,771 4] 117 {0y 33 (5) EYTE]
Outstanding at the end of vear 11 1 (11) {4) {0) {0) (2) (5)
Particuliss RR Cable Network Rai Cable Network HRajn Cable IT Agency

FY 2223 | ¥y21-22 FY 22.23 FY 21-22 FY 22-23 FY 21-22 FY 22-23 FY 21-22
Payment for purchase of maternl and SEIVICes - 37l - - 5 = - .
Purchase of material & Services - (361) - - = - - .
Sales of service and matenals 81§ 349 780 1,087 162 172 1,472 1,660
Payment received for sales of services/other (172) (1,463) (1,664)
recoveries (814) (545) (779) (1,477) (161)
Advance Refund to/given 1 i - - - 2 =
Linbilities Taken over by - (1) . (45) . - = (372)
Bad Debits written off - 2) . [L15) - 1 - (4)
O ling at the beginning of year (1,076 (1,077) 4 154 {0) (1) 15) 550
Outstanding at the end of year {1,071) (1.076) 6 4 0 (0) 6 __(5)]
Particulars :::“‘:;hvh;?:: Maa Vaishnav Services Man Vaishannv Vision Shiva Vision

¥Y22.23 | Fy 2122 FY 2223 | Fy21-22 FY 22-23 FY 21-22 FY22-23 | Fy21-22
Sales of service and il 1210 1,408 1,595 2,987 107 736 - -
Payment received for sales of services/other (1,030) 2 -
recoveries (1,224) (1,316} {3.,651) (2,539) (107}
Advance Refund 1o/given - - @ (723) ! £ - =
Liabiliies Taken over by - (381} - - - (233) (500)
Bad Debts wniten off - 148 - {19) - 312 - (313)
Outstunding nt the beginni g of year (52) 289 (41 253 14 320 36 849
Outstanding at the end of year (66) (52) (98) (41) 14 14 36 36
Particulars Maa Laxmi Network Global Cable Man Lasmi Network Global Cable

FY 2223 | FY21-22 FY 2223 FY 21-22 FY 22.23 FY 21-22 FY 2223 FY 21-22
Sales of service and materials 3939 3,945 493 613 93 132 385 374
Payment received for sales of services/other (131) (385) (368)
récoveries (3,929) (3.919) (489) (618) (92)
Advance Refund to/given - (598) | (435) - (47} - -
Liabilities Taken over by - (801) - - - (36) - ()
Bad Debts written off - (18) - (&) - (4) = 116
0 ling at the beginning of year 202 1,612 (8) 439 (4) 52 (1) (124)
Ouistanding at the end of year 212 202 (4) (8) 3) i4) (1Y) [4)]
Piiiticiitiies Mna Laxmi Network Global Cable Nice Network Puju Cable

FY 22-23 FY 21-22 FY 22-23 FY 21-22 FY 22-23 FY21.22 FY 22-23 FY 21-22
Sales of service and materials 233 243 187 203 1,714 1,707 1,288 1,159
Payirient received for sales of services/other (216) (243) (184) (201) {1,646) (1,137 (1,306) (1,021)
| Advance Refund to/given = (333) @) (269) ] {580) 0 (693)
Linbilities Taken over by - (186) . (146) - (419) - (1,096)
|Bad Debits written off - (8) - (3) - - - (2
8] ling ut the beginning of year [448) 80 (3) 412 75 1,103 T4 1,728
Outstanding at the end of vear (452)] (443) 3) (3) 151 75 36 74

Baba Bhole Digital = Man Rajrappn Digital Cable Baba Bhole Digital Cable

Particulars Network Mabavir Star Network ! Network Network

FY 2223 | FY21-22 FY 22-23 FY 21-22 FY 22-23 FY 21-22 FY 2223 FY 21-22
Sales of service and materinls - 15 - . 524 436 1,072 884
Payment received for sales of services/other
TECOVEries - (15) - - (522) (374) (1,068) (769)
Advance Refund 1o/given - - - 1 - . (236)
Liabilities Taken aver by - (147) - (103) - (137) - -
Bad Debis written off - (602) - 100 - (177) - 14
Outstanding at the beginning of year (16) 731 - 3 (12) 240 14 121
Outstanding nt the end of year (16) (16} - - {9) {12) 18 14




Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited

Notes to financial stutements for the yenr ended March 31, 2023

— l‘“""’&f‘:::f"’" L R‘;: ":::::" Cable: | ashi Vishuwanath Cable Network Praknsh Cable Network
FY 2223 FY 1.2 FY 22.23 FY 21-22 FY 22.23 FY11-22 FY 22-23 FY 21-22
Sules of service and materials £9] 617 845 753 605 535 - -
Payment received for sales of servi ces/other (685) (320) (839) (665) (603] (443) - -
Liabilities Taken over by - - : = - - E (92)
Bad Debis written off . (113} - (208) - (188) - 1
Outstanding at the beginning of year (3} 112 (2) 117 2) o in 90
Outstanding at the end of year 3 3) 4 (2) 0 2) (1) [
Priticuiars Victor Distributors
FY2223 | FY21-22
Payinent for purchase of materinl & services - 33
Purchase of matenal & Services - (76T}
Payment received for sales of services/other - (639)
OQutstanding at the beginning of year 274 1,647
Ouulun_din; at the end of year 274 274
The Code on Social Security, 2020 has been enscted by the Indian Parliament, which would impact the contrit by the company towards Provident fund and Gratuity. The

effective date from which the changes will be applicable and the corr Jing Rules, are yet to be

impact 0 the period in which the Code and the ::;:rrtspmding Rules hecnm effective

fied. The Company wll plete ity evaluation and will give approprate

58 The finanel staterients were have been approved by the Board of Directors in their respective meeting held on 24th day of May 2023

Add; 1B 1, 1t ok
59 o ¥
extent upplicable 1o the Company.

iled in clause 6L of General Instructions grven in Part [ of Division 1T of the Sehedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013 are fumnished to the

60 Previous year's figures have been regrouped and/or rearranged wherever necessary to make them able with the

years figures,

in our report of even date is snnexed

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SITT Maurya Cable Net Private Limited

muu\ \("LW

; ) X § Muno Kumar
Parnes  NSUEOAQTT S Di Director
Membership Number: 064574 DIY. 005698 DIN: 03449709

UDIN 2% L USFY RS WV IAIST )

Place - Kolknta
Date 24y of May' 2023

ADViphates
Abhishek Kumar

Manager (F&A) mpany Secretary
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